	T		
RETURN BIDS TO: RETOURNER LES SOUMISSIONS À:	Title – Titre Snow Clearing Services – Goose Bay Upper Air Station, Newfoundland		
Bid Receiving - Environment Canada / Réception des soumissions – Environnement Canada	EC Bid Solicitation No. /SAP No. – Nº de la demande de soumissions EC / Nº SAP 5000033849		
	Date of Bid solicitation (YYYY-MI de soumissions (AAAA-MM-JJ) November 17, 2017		
BID SOLICITATION	Bid Solicitation Closes (YEAR-MM-DD) - La demande de soumissions prend fin (AAAA-	Time Zone – Fuseau horaire	
DEMANDE DE SOUMISSONS	WW-JJ)	Eastern Standard Time	
PROPOSAL TO: ENVIRONMENT CANADA	at – à 2:00 P.M. on – le January 4th 2018		
We offer to perform or provide to Canada the services detailed in the	F.O.B – F.A.B		
document including any attachments and annexes, in accordance with the	Address Enquiries to - Adresser Anthony De Flavis	toutes questions à	
terms and conditions set out or referred to in the document, at the price(s) provided.	514-283-5958		
SOUMISSION À: ENVIRONNEMENT CANADA	Delivery Required (YEAR-MM-DD) – Livraison exigée (AAAA-MM-JJ) See herein		
Nous offrons d'effectuer ou de fournir au Canada, aux conditions énoncées ou incluses par référence dans le	Destination - of Services / Destir See herein	nation des services	
document incluant toutes pièces jointes et annexes, les services détaillés dans le document, au(x) prix indiqué(s).	Security / Sécurité There is no security requirement	t associated with this	
	Vendor/Firm Name and Address du fournisseur/de l'entrepreneur		
	Telephone No. – N° de téléphone	Fax No. – N° de Fax	
	Name and title of person authorized to sign on behalf of Vendor/Firm: (type or print) / Nom et titre de la personne autorisée à signer au nom du fournisseur/de l'entrepreneur (taper ou écrire en caractères d'imprimerie)		
	Signature	Date	

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

#### **PART 1 – INFORMATION**

- 1. Statement of Work
- 2. Debriefings
- 3. Summary

#### **PART 2 – BIDDER INSTRUCTIONS**

- 1. Standard Instructions, Clauses and Conditions
- 2. Submission of Bids
- 3. Former public servants Competitive Bid
- 4. Enquiries Bid Solicitation
- 5. Applicable Laws
- 6. Optional Site Visit

#### **PART 3 - BID PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS**

1. Bid Preparation Instructions

#### PART 4 - EVALUATION PROCEDURES AND BASIS OF SELECTION

- 1. Evaluation Procedures
- 2. Basis of Selection

#### **PART 5 – CERTIFICATIONS**

- 1. Certifications Required Precedent to Contract Award
- 2. Insurance requirements

#### **PART 6 - RESULTING CONTRACT CLAUSES**

- 1. Security Requirement
- 2. Statement of Work
- 3. Standard Clauses and Conditions
- 4. Term of Contract
- 5. Authorities
- 6. Proactive Disclosure of Contracts with Former Public Servants
- 7. Payment
- 8. Invoicing Instructions
- 9. Certifications
- 10. Applicable Laws
- 11. Priority of Documents
- 12. Insurance

#### **List of Annexes:**

Annex A Statement of Work
Annex B Basis of Payment
Annex C Insurance requirements
Annex D Supplier List of Names

# Snow Clearing Services – Goose Bay Upper Air Station, Newfoundland

#### **PART 1 – GENERAL INFORMATION**

#### 1. Statement of Work

Environment Canada has a requirement for snow clearing services as detailed in the Statement of Work, Annex A to the bid solicitation. The period of the contract is from contract award date to March 31, 2019, with the option for two additional one-year periods. This involves clearing snow from the drive way and weather station compound seven days per week, 365 days per year, as required. Snow clearing must be complete by 7am and 7pm each day (when required).

# 2. Debriefings

Bidders may request a debriefing on the results of the bid solicitation process. Bidders should make the request to the Contracting Authority within 15 working days of receipt of the results of the bid solicitation process. The debriefing may be in writing, by telephone or in person.

# 3. Summary

The requirement is subject to the provisions of the World Trade Organization Agreement on Government Procurement (WTO-AGP), the North American Free Trade Agreement (NAFTA), and the Agreement on Internal Trade (AIT).

The Annexes include the Statement of Work, the Basis of Payment, Insurance Requirements, the supplier list of names and any other annexes.

#### **PART 2 – BIDDER INSTRUCTIONS**

## 1. Standard Instructions, Clauses and Conditions

All instructions, clauses and conditions identified in the bid solicitation by number, date and title are set out in the PWGSC *Standard Acquisition Clauses and Conditions Manual* (https://buyandsell.gc.ca/policy-and-guidelines/standard-acquisition-clauses-and-conditions-manual) issued by Public Works and Government Services Canada. Bidders who submit a bid agree to be bound by the instructions, clauses and conditions of the bid solicitation and accept the clauses and conditions of the resulting contract.

The 2003 (2016-04-04) Standard Instructions - Goods or Services - Competitive Requirements, are incorporated by reference into and form part of the bid solicitation.

The standard instructions 2003 are modified as follows:

Under "Text" at 02:

Delete: "Procurement Business Number"

**Insert**: "Deleted"

At Section 02 Procurement Business Number

**Delete:** In its entirety **Insert:** "Deleted"

# At Section 05 Submission of Bids, Subsection 05 (2d):

**Delete:** In its entirety

Insert: "send its bid only to Environment Canada (EC) as specified on page 1 of the bid

solicitation or to the address specified in the bid solicitation;"

At Section 06 Late Bids:

Delete: "PWGSC"

Insert: "Environment Canada"

At Section 07 Delayed Bids:

Delete: "PWGSC"

Insert: "Environment Canada"

At Section 08 Transmission by Facsimile, Subsection 08 (1):

**Delete:** In its entirety

Insert: "Bids may be submitted by facsimile if specified in the bid solicitation."

At Section 12 Rejection of Bid, Subsection 12 (1) a. and b.:

**Delete:** In their entirety

Insert: "Deleted"

At Section 17 Joint Venture, Subsection 17 (1) b.:

Delete: "the Procurement Business Number of each member of the joint venture,"

Insert: "Deleted"

At Section 20 Further Information, Subsection 20 (2):

**Delete:** In its entirety **Insert:** "Deleted"

At Section 05 Submission of Bids, Subsection 05 (4)

Delete: "sixty (60) days"

Insert: "one hundred and twenty (120) days"

#### 2. Submission of Bids

2.1 Bids must be submitted to Environment Canada (EC) at the address and by the date, time and place indicated on page 1 of the bid solicitation.

#### 3. Former Public Servant – Competitive Bid

Contracts awarded to former public servants (FPS) in receipt of a pension or of a lump sum payment must bear the closest public scrutiny, and reflect fairness in the spending of public funds. In order to comply with Treasury Board policies and directives on contracts awarded to FPS, bidders must provide the information required below before contract award. If the answer to the questions and, as applicable the information required have not been received by the time the evaluation of bids is completed, Canada will inform the Bidder of a time frame within which to provide the information. Failure to comply with Canada's request and meet the requirement within the prescribed time frame will render the bid non-responsive.

#### **Definitions**

For the purposes of this clause, "former public servant" is any former member of a department as defined in the *Financial Administration Act*, R.S., 1985, c. F-11, a former member of the Canadian Armed Forces or a former member of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police. A former public servant may be:

- a. an individual;
- b. an individual who has incorporated;
- c. a partnership made of former public servants; or
- d. a sole proprietorship or entity where the affected individual has a controlling or major interest in the entity.

"lump sum payment period" means the period measured in weeks of salary, for which payment has been made to facilitate the transition to retirement or to other employment as a result of the implementation of various programs to reduce the size of the Public Service. The lump sum payment period does not include the period of severance pay, which is measured in a like manner.

"pension" means a pension or annual allowance paid under the *Public Service Superannuation Act* (PSSA), R.S., 1985, c.P-36, and any increases paid pursuant to the *Supplementary Retirement Benefits Act*, R.S., 1985, c.S-24 as it affects the PSSA. It does not include pensions payable pursuant to the *Canadian Forces Superannuation Act*, R.S., 1985, c.C-17, the *Defence Services Pension Continuation Act*, 1970, c.D-3, the *Royal Canadian Mounted Police Pension Continuation Act*, 1970, c.R-10, and the *Royal Canadian Mounted Police Superannuation Act*, R.S., 1985, c.R-11, the *Members of Parliament Retiring Allowances Act*, R.S., 1985, c.M-5, and that portion of pension payable to the *Canada Pension Plan Act*, R.S., 1985, c.C-8.

#### Former Public Servant in Receipt of a Pension

As per the above definitions, is the Bidder a FPS in receipt of a pension? Yes () No ()

If so, the Bidder must provide the following information, for all FPS in receipt of a pension, as applicable:

- a. name of former public servant;
- b. date of termination of employment or retirement from the Public Service.

By providing this information, Bidders agree that the successful Bidder's status, with respect to being a former public servant in receipt of a pension, will be reported on departmental websites as part of the published proactive disclosure reports in accordance with Contracting Policy Notice: 2012-2 and the Guidelines on the Proactive Disclosure of Contracts.

# **Work Force Adjustment Directive**

Is the Bidder a FPS who received a lump sum payment pursuant to the terms of the Work Force Adjustment Directive? Yes ( ) No ( ) If so, the Bidder must provide the following information:

- a. name of former public servant;
- b. conditions of the lump sum payment incentive;
- c. date of termination of employment;
- d. amount of lump sum payment;
- e. rate of pay on which lump sum payment is based;
- f. period of lump sum payment including start date, end date and number of weeks;
- g. number and amount (professional fees) of other contracts subject to the restrictions of a work force adjustment program.

For all contracts awarded during the lump sum payment period, the total amount of fees that may be paid to a FPS who received a lump sum payment is \$5,000, including Applicable Taxes.

#### 4. Enquiries - Bid Solicitation

All enquiries must be submitted in writing to the Contracting Authority no later than five (5) calendar days before the bid closing date. Enquiries received after that time may not be answered.

Bidders should reference as accurately as possible the numbered item of the bid solicitation to which the enquiry relates. Care should be taken by bidders to explain each question in sufficient detail in order to enable Canada to provide an accurate answer. Technical enquiries that are of a proprietary nature must be clearly marked "proprietary" at each relevant item. Items identified as "proprietary" will be treated as such except where Canada determines that the enquiry is not of a proprietary nature. Canada may edit the question(s) or may request that the Bidder do so, so that the proprietary nature of the question(s) is eliminated and the enquiry can be answered to all bidders. Enquiries not submitted in a form that can be distributed to all bidders may not be answered by Canada.

#### 5. Applicable Laws

Any resulting contract must be interpreted and governed, and the relations between the parties determined, by the laws in force in Newfoundland / Labrador

Bidders may, at their discretion, substitute the applicable laws of a Canadian province or territory of their choice without affecting the validity of their bid, by deleting the name of the Canadian province or territory specified and inserting the name of the Canadian province or territory of their choice. If no change is made, it acknowledges that the applicable laws specified are acceptable to the bidders.

#### 6. Optional Site Visit



It is recommended that the Bidder or a representative of the Bidder visit the work site. The date and time of the site visit will be coordinated with the Bidder upon request. Arrangements for site visits must be made with the Contracting Authority prior to fourteen (14) days before bid submission closing date.

Bidders are requested to communicate with the Contracting Authority no later than four (4) days before the scheduled site visit to confirm attendance and provide the name(s) of the person(s) who will attend. Bidders may be requested to sign an attendance sheet. Bidders who do not attend or do not send a representative will not be given an alternative appointment but they will not be precluded from submitting a bid. Any clarifications or changes to the bid solicitation resulting from the site visit will be included as an amendment to the bid solicitation.

#### **PART 3 – BID PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS**

#### 1. Bid Preparation Instructions

Canada requests that bidders provide their bid in separately bound sections as follows:

Section I: Technical Bid (3 hard copies)

Section II: Financial Bid (3 hard copies)

Section III: Certifications (3 hard copies)

Prices must appear in the financial bid only. No prices must be indicated in any other section of the bid.

Canada requests that bidders follow the format instructions described below in the preparation of their bid:

- (a) use 8.5 x 11 inch (216 mm x 279 mm) paper;
- (b) use a numbering system that corresponds to the bid solicitation.

In April 2006, Canada issued a policy directing federal departments and agencies to take the necessary steps to incorporate environmental considerations into the procurement process Policy on Green Procurement (http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/ecologisation-greening/achats-procurement/politique-policy-eng.html). To assist Canada in reaching its objectives, bidders should:

- 1) use 8.5 x 11 inch (216 mm x 279 mm) paper containing fibre certified as originating from a sustainably-managed forest and containing minimum 30% recycled content; and
- use an environmentally-preferable format including black and white printing instead of colour printing, printing double sided/duplex, using staples or clips instead of cerlox, duotangs or binders; and
- (3) print on both sides of the paper.

Section I: Technical Bid

In their technical bid, bidders should demonstrate their understanding of the requirements contained in the bid solicitation and explain how they will carry out the Work

#### Section II: Financial Bid

1. Bidders must submit their financial bid in accordance in accordance with the Basis of Payment in Annex B. The total amount of Applicable Taxes must be shown separately.

#### 1.1 Price Breakdown

In their financial bid, the bidders are requested to provide a detailed breakdown of the price for the following elements for each task of the Work, as applicable:

- (a) Professional fees: For each individual and (or) labour category to be assigned to the Work, the bidders should indicate: i) the firm hourly rate or the firm daily rate, inclusive of overhead and profit; and ii) the estimated number of hours or days, as applicable. The bidders should indicate the number of hours in one working day.
- (b) Materials and Supplies (if applicable): The bidders should identify each category of materials and supplies required to complete the Work and provide the pricing basis. The Bidder should indicate, on a per category basis, whether the items are likely to be consumed during the performance of any resulting contract.
- (c) Applicable Taxes: The bidders should indicate the Applicable Taxes separately.
- **1.2** Bidders should include the following information in their financial bid:
- (a) Their legal name; and
- (b) The name of the contact person (including this person's mailing address, phone and facsimile numbers and email address) authorized by the Bidder to enter into communications with Canada with regards to their bid; and any contract that may result from their bid.

#### **Section III - Certifications**

#### 1. Certifications Required Precedent to Contract Award

Bidders must provide the required certifications Part 5.

# 2. Bidder's Proposed Site or Premises Requiring Safeguard Measures

As indicated under Security Requirements in Part 1, the Bidder must provide the required information below: on the Bidder's proposed site or premises for which safeguard measures are required for Work Performance.

Address:

Street Number / Street Name, Unit / Suite / Apartment Number City, Province, Territory / State Postal Code / Zip Code Country

#### PART 4 - EVALUATION PROCEDURES AND BASIS OF SELECTION

#### 1. Evaluation Procedures

Bids will be assessed in accordance with the entire requirement of the bid solicitation including the technical and financial evaluation criteria.

#### 1.1 Technical Evaluation

Except where expressly provided otherwise, the experience described in the bid must be the experience of the Bidder itself (which includes the experience of any companies that formed the Bidder by way of a merger but does not include any experience acquired through a purchase of assets or an assignment of contract). The experience of the Bidder's affiliates (i.e. parent, subsidiary or sister corporations), subcontractors, or suppliers will not be considered.

#### 1.2 Technical Evaluation

# 1.2.1. Mandatory Technical Criteria

	MANDATORY CRITERIA	Compliant	Non-compliant
1	Snow plow operator must hold a valid driver's license (issued by any of Canada's Provincial or Territorial authorities)		
2	Snow plow operator must have a minimum of two years-experience plowing snow and/or snow removal		
	Provide a description of the equipment that will be used for the snow removal services. Include items such as;		
3	make, model, year, etc. (please note that a snow blower and/or snow blower attachments will be considered an asset).		

#### 1.3 Financial Evaluation

#### 1.3.2 Evaluation of Price

The price of the bid will be evaluated in Canadian dollars, the Applicable Taxes excluded, Canadian customs and excise taxes included.

#### 2. Basis of Selection - Mandatory Technical Criteria

A bid must comply with the requirements of the bid solicitation and meet all mandatory technical evaluation criteria to be declared responsive. The responsive bid with the lowest evaluated price will be recommended for award of a contract.

#### **PART 5 - CERTIFICATIONS**

Bidders must provide the required certifications and associated information to be awarded a contract.

The certifications provided by bidders to Canada are subject to verification by Canada at all times. Canada will declare a bid non-responsive, or will declare a contractor in default in

carrying out any of its obligations under the Contract, if any certification made by the Bidder is found to be untrue whether made knowingly or unknowingly, during the bid evaluation period or during the contract period.

The Contracting Authority will have the right to ask for additional information to verify the Bidder's certifications. Failure to comply and to cooperate with any request or requirement imposed by the Contracting Authority may render the bid non-responsive or constitute a default under the Contract.

# 1. Certifications Required Precedent to Contract Award

# 1.1 Integrity Provisions - Associated Information

By submitting a bid, the Bidder certifies that the Bidder and its Affiliates are in compliance with the provisions as stated in Section 01 Integrity Provisions - Bid of Standard Instructions 2003. The associated information required within the Integrity Provisions will assist Canada in confirming that the certifications are true.

# 2. Additional Certifications Required Precedent to Contract Award

The certifications listed below should be completed and submitted with the bid but may be submitted afterwards. If any of these required certifications is not completed and submitted as requested, the Contracting Authority will inform the Bidder of a time frame within which to provide the information. Failure to comply with the request of the Contracting Authority and to provide the certifications within the time frame provided will render the bid non-responsive.

#### 3. Insurance Requirements

The Bidder must provide a letter from an insurance broker or an insurance company licensed to operate in Canada stating that the Bidder, if awarded a contract as a result of the bid solicitation, can be insured in accordance with the Insurance Requirements specified in the contract.

If the information is not provided in the bid, the Contracting Authority will so inform the Bidder and provide the Bidder with a time frame within which to meet the requirement. Failure to comply with the request of the Contracting Authority and meet the requirement within that time period will render the bid non-responsive.

#### PART 6 - RESULTING CONTRACT (at contract award, delete this line)

The following clauses and conditions apply to and form part of any contract resulting from the bid solicitation

Title: (insert title at contract award)

#### 1. Security Requirement

**1.1** The following security requirement (SRCL and related clauses) applies and form part of the Contract.

#### 1.2 Contractor's Site or Premises Requiring Safeguard Measures



The Contractor must diligently maintain up-to-date, the information related to the Contractor's site or premises, where safeguard measures are required in the performance of the Work, for the following addresses:

Address:

Street Number / Street Name, Unit / Suite / Apartment Number City, Province, Territory / State Postal Code / Zip Code Country

#### 2. Statement of Work

The Contractor must perform the Work in accordance with the Statement of Work at Annex "A".

#### 3. Standard Clauses and Conditions

All clauses and conditions identified in the Contract by number, date and title are set out in the PWGSC *Standard Acquisition Clauses and Conditions Manual* (https://buyandsell.gc.ca/policy-and-guidelines/standard-acquisition-clauses-and-conditions-manual) issued by Public Works and Government Services Canada.

#### 3.1 General Conditions

2010B (2016-04-04), General Conditions - Professional Services (Medium Complexity), as modified below, apply to and form part of the Contract.

General conditions 2010B is modified as follows:

# **At Section 12 Transportation Costs**

**Delete:** In its entirety **Insert:** "Deleted"

#### At Section 13 Transportation Carriers" Liability

**Delete:** In its entirety. **Insert:** "Deleted"

#### At Section 18, Confidentiality:

**Delete:** In its entirety **Insert:** "Deleted"

Insert Subsection: "35 Liability"

"The Contractor is liable for any damage caused by the Contractor, its employees, subcontractors, or agents to Canada or any third party. Canada is liable for any damage caused by Canada, its employees or agents to the Contractor or any third party. The Parties agree that no limitation of liability or indemnity provision applies to the Contract unless it is specifically incorporated in full text in the Articles of Agreement. Damage includes any injury to persons (including injury resulting in death) or loss of or damage to property (including real property) caused as a result of or during the performance of the Contract."

#### At Section 06 Subcontracts

**Delete:** paragraphs 1, 2, and 3 in their entirety.

*Insert:* "The Contractor may subcontract the supply of goods or services that are customarily subcontracted by the Contractor. Subcontracting does not relieve the Contractor from any of its obligations under the Contract or impose any liability upon Canada to a subcontractor. In any subcontract, the Contractor agrees to bind the subcontractor by the same conditions by which the Contractor is bound under the Contract, unless the Contracting Authority agrees otherwise, with the exception of requirements under the Federal Contractors Program for employment equity which only apply to the Contractor."

At Section 19 Copyright Delete: In its entirety Insert: "Deleted"

#### 4. Term of Contract

#### 4.1 Period of the Contract

The Work is to be performed during the period of April 1, 2018 to March 31, 2019

# **Option to Extend the Contract**

The Contractor grants to Canada the irrevocable option to extend the term of the Contract by up to two additional one year period under the same conditions. The Contractor agrees that, during the extended period of the Contract, it will be paid in accordance with the applicable provisions as set out in the Basis of Payment.

Canada may exercise this option at any time by sending a written notice to the Contractor at least 30 calendar days before the expiry date of the Contract. The option may only be exercised by the Contracting Authority, and will be evidenced for administrative purposes only, through a contract amendment.

#### 5. Authorities

Title:

# 5.1 Contracting Authority

The Contracting Authority for the Contract is:

Name: \_\_\_\_\_

Environment Canada Procurement and Contracting

Procurement and Contracting Address:

Telephone: \_\_\_-\_\_\_Facsimile: \_\_\_--\_\_-E-mail address:

The Contracting Authority is responsible for the management of the Contract and any changes to the Contract must be authorized in writing by the Contracting Authority. The Contractor must not perform work in excess of or outside the scope of the Contract based on verbal or written requests or instructions from anybody other than the Contracting Authority.

# 5.2 Technical Authority

The Technical Authority for the Contract is:

Title: Organ	e: nization: ess:
Facsi	hone: mile: il address:
whom conce discus autho	Technical Authority named above is the representative of the department or agency for in the Work is being carried out under the Contract and is responsible for all matters erning the technical content of the Work under the Contract. Technical matters may be seed with the Technical Authority, however the Technical Authority has no authority to prize changes to the scope of the Work. Changes to the scope of the Work can only be a through a contract amendment issued by the Contracting Authority.
5.3	Contractor's Representative
6.	Proactive Disclosure of Contracts with Former Public Servants
a Pub inforn disclo	oviding information on its status, with respect to being a former public servant in receipt of olic Service Superannuation Act (PSSA) pension, the Contractor has agreed that this nation will be reported on departmental websites as part of the published proactive sure reports, in accordance with Contracting Policy Notice: 2012-2 of the Treasury Board etariat of Canada.
7. 7.1	Payment Basis of Payment
Contr awar	nsideration of the Contractor satisfactorily completing all of its obligations under the act, the Contractor will be paid a firm price of \$ (insert the amount at contract a). Customs duties are (insert "included", "excluded" OR "subject to exemption") applicable Taxes are extra.
the W	da will not pay the Contractor for any design changes, modifications or interpretations of ork unless they have been approved, in writing, by the Contracting Authority before their poration into the Work.
7.2	Limitation of Expenditure
(a)	Canada's total liability to the Contractor under the Contract must not exceed \$  Customs duties are ( <i>insert</i> "included", "excluded" or "subject to exemption") and Applicable Taxes are extra.

- (b) No increase in the total liability of Canada or in the price of the Work resulting from any design changes, modifications or interpretations of the Work, will be authorized or paid to the Contractor unless these design changes, modifications or interpretations have been approved, in writing, by the Contracting Authority before their incorporation into the Work. The Contractor must not perform any work or provide any service that would result in Canada's total liability being exceeded before obtaining the written approval of the Contracting Authority. The Contractor must notify the Contracting Authority in writing as to the adequacy of this sum:
  - (i) when it is 75 percent committed, or
  - (ii) four (4) months before the contract expiry date, or
  - (iii) as soon as the Contractor considers that the contract funds provided are inadequate for the completion of the Work,

whichever comes first.

- (c) If the notification is for inadequate contract funds, the Contractor must provide to the Contracting Authority a written estimate for the additional funds required. Provision of such information by the Contractor does not increase Canada's liability.
- 8 Invoicing Instructions
- 8.1 Single Payment
- (a) The Contractor must submit invoices monthly in accordance with the section entitled "Invoice Submission" of the general conditions.
- (b) Canada will pay the Contractor upon completion and delivery of the Work in accordance with the payment provisions of the Contract if:
  - (i) an accurate and complete invoice and any other documents required by the Contract have been submitted in accordance with the invoicing instructions provided in the Contract;
  - (ii) all such documents have been verified by Canada;
  - (iii) the Work delivered has been accepted by Canada.
- 9. Certifications
- 9.1 Compliance

Compliance with the certifications provided by the Contractor in its bid is a **condition** of the Contract and subject to verification by Canada during the term of the Contract. If the Contractor does not comply with any certification or it is determined that any certification made by the Contractor in its bid is untrue, whether made knowingly or unknowingly, Canada has the right, pursuant to the default provision of the Contract, to terminate the Contract for default.

# 10. Applicable Laws

The Contract must be interpreted and governed, and the relations between the parties determined, by the laws in force in Newfoundland / Labrador

# 11. Priority of Documents

If there is a discrepancy between the wording of any documents that appear on the list, the wording of the document that first appears on the list has priority over the wording of any document that subsequently appears on the list.

(a)	the Articles of Agreement;
(b)	Modified 2010B General Conditions - Professional Services (Medium Complexity) ( <i>insert date</i> )
(c)	Annex, Statement of Work;
(d)	Annex, Basis of Payment;
(e)	Annex, Security Requirements Check List (if applicable);
(f)	the Contractor's bid dated, (insert date of bid) (If the bid was clarified or
	amended, insert at the time of contract award: "as clarified on" or "as amended
	on" and insert date(s) of clarification(s) or amendment(s)).

#### 12. Insurance

The Contractor must comply with the insurance requirements specified in Annex C. The Contractor must maintain the required insurance coverage for the duration of the Contract. Compliance with the insurance requirements does not release the Contractor from or reduce its liability under the Contract.

The Contractor is responsible for deciding if additional insurance coverage is necessary to fulfill its obligation under the Contract and to ensure compliance with any applicable law. Any additional insurance coverage is at the Contractor's expense, and for its own benefit and protection.

The Contractor must forward to the Contracting Authority within ten (10) days after the date of award of the Contract, a Certificate of Insurance evidencing the insurance coverage and confirming that the insurance policy complying with the requirements is in force. For Canadian-based Contractors, coverage must be placed with an Insurer licensed to carry out business in Canada, however, for Foreign-based Contractors, coverage must be placed with an Insurer with an A.M. Best Rating no less than "A-". The Contractor must, if requested by the Contracting Authority, forward to Canada a certified true copy of all applicable insurance policies.

# ANNEX A STATEMENT OF WORK

# SW01 – Background Information

Environment Canada has a requirement for snow clearing services at the Goose Bay Upper Air Station located at civic addresses 30 and 40 Abbott Drive, Happy Valley-Goose Bay, NL. There exists specialized sensors, programs and yard surfaces at this site therefore specialized equipment such as a snow blower or snow blower attachment are required. A gate is present and a key will be provided to the successful bidder.

#### SW02

- 1) The driveway (access road) and the weather station compound is to be kept sufficiently clear of snow in order that regular site personnel are capable of driving up to and around the weather station buildings, using a normal automobile, 7 days per week 365 days per year. Sufficiently clear is defined as no more than five (5) centimetres accumulation.
- 2) The snow clearing as describes above must be completed before 7 o'clock local time in the morning (and again the same day if necessary before 7 o'clock local time in the evening) to ensure that regular site personnel can access the site in order to perform a weather balloon release.
- 3) Snow removal services do not include building entrances and exits. The regular site personnel will keep all building entrances and exits clear. The contractor's snow removal activities however, shall not impede egress from the buildings nor cause the regular site personnel to remove snow banks from the entrances, exits and weather equipment.
- 4) The Contractor shall not push the snow in such a way as to cause it to accumulate in banks higher than 1 meter in the vicinity of the weather balloon building. The snow should be "feathered out" or sloped in such a way as to prevent obstructions or hazards to the regular site personnel during the release of large weather balloons.
- 5) Areas to be kept clear of snow; a) the driveway (access road) leading to the weather station buildings (approximately 180 metres long by approximately 9 metres wide) and b) the weather station compound (area around the buildings, approximately 80 metres long by approximately 40 metres wide (see photos included).
- 6) The contractor will provide salting and sanding as and when required over all areas that are subject to human foot traffic especially a path from the operations building to the balloon inflation building.

#### SW03

The contractor will take special care and caution not to disrupt or damage the specialized sensors and programs located on site. The contractor will confirm with the departmental representative upon signing the contract to confirm the location of the sensors. The contractor will also take special care and attention not to damage the grass on site.



Drive Way





Instrument Compound



**Operations Building** 

# ANNEX B BASIS OF PAYMENT (Tables to be completed by bidder, not including taxes)

	Monthly Fees for the Period April 1, 2018 up to and including June 30, 2018			
April 1, 2018 to April 30, 2018 (A)	May 1, 2018 to May 31, 2018 (B)	June 1, 2018 to June 30, 2018 (C)	Total estimated cost for months of April, May and June, 2018 (A)+(B)+(C)	
\$* per event	\$* per event x 6 per month = \$	\$* per event x 3 per month = \$	\$	

Monthly Fees for the Period September 1, 2018 up to and including October 31, 2018				
September 1 to September	October 1 to October 31,	Total estimated cost for months of		
31, 2018	2018	September and October, 2018 (A)+(B)		
(A)	(B)			
\$* per event x 3	\$ * per event x 6			
per month	per month	\$		
		*		
= \$	= \$			

Monthly Flat Ra	ite Fees for the Period	November 1, 2018 u	ip to and including N	March 31, 2019	
November 1 to	December 1 to	January 1 to	February 1 to	March 1 to	
November 30,	December 31, 2018	January 31, 2019	February 28, 2019	March 31, 2019	
2018	(B)	(C)	(D)	(E)	
(A)	, ,	,	, ,	, ,	
	\$ (for	\$ (for	\$ (for	\$ (for	
\$ (for	entire month)	entire month)	entire month)	entire month)	
entire month)	,	,	,	,	
,					
Tot	Total estimated cost for months of November 1, 2018 to March 31, 2019				
100		(A)+(B)+(C)+(D)+(E)	2010 to Maron 01, 201		
(· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					
	\$				
Ψ					

Monthly Fo	Monthly Fees for the Period April 1, 2019 up to and including June 30, 2019				
April 1, 2019 to April	May 1, 2019 to May	June 1, 2019 to June	Total estimated cost for		
30, 2019	31, 2019	30, 2019	months of April, May and		
(A)	(B)	(C)	June, 2019 (A)+(B)+(C)		
\$* per event x 6 per month	\$* per event x 6 per month	\$* per event x 3 per month			
= \$	= \$	= \$	\$		

Monthly Fees for the Period September 1, 2019 up to and including October 31, 2019				
September 1 to September 31, 2019 (A)	October 1 to October 31, 2019 (B)	Total estimated cost for months of September and October, 2019 (A)+(B)		
\$* per event x 3 per month	\$* per event x 6 per month	\$		
= \$	= \$			

Monthly Flat R	ate Fees for the Perio	d November 1, 2019	up to and including	March 31, 2020
November 1 to	December 1 to	January 1 to	February 1 to	March 1 to March
November 30,	December 31, 2019	January 31, 2020	February 29, 2020	31 , 2020
2019	(B)	(C)	(D)	(E)
(A)				
	\$(for	\$(for	\$(for	\$(for
\$(for	entire month)	entire month)	entire month)	entire month)
entire month)			·	
To	otal estimated cost for n	nonths of November 1	, 2019 to March 31, 20	20
		(A)+(B)+(C)+(D)+(E)		
\$				

Monthly Fe	ees for the Period April	1, 2020 up to and includi	ng June 30, 2020
April 1, 2020 to April	May 1, 2020 to May	June 1, 2020 to June	Total estimated cost for months of April, May and June, 2020 (A)+(B)+(C)
30, 2020	31, 2020	30, 2020	
(A)	(B)	(C)	
\$* per	\$* per	\$* per	\$
event x 6 per month	event x 6 per month	event x 3 per month	
= \$	= \$	= \$	

Monthly Fees for the Period September 1, 2020 up to and including October 31, 2020				
September 1 to September	October 1 to October 31,	Total estimated cost for months of		
31, 2020	2020	September and October, 2020 (A)+(B)		
(A)	(B)			
\$* per event x 3 per month	\$* per event x 6 per month	\$		
= \$	= \$			

Monthly Flat Rate Fees for the Period November 1, 2020 up to and including March 31, 2021					
November 1 to	December 1 to	January 1 to	February 1 to	March 1 to March	
November 30,	December 31, 2020	January 31, 2021	February 28, 2021	31, 2021	
2020	(B)	(C)	(D)	(E)	
(A)					
	\$(for	\$(for	\$ (for	\$ (for	
\$(for	entire month)	entire month)	entire month)	entire month)	
entire month)			,	,	
Total estimated cost for months of November 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021					
(A)+(B)+(C)+(D)+(E)					
\$					

\*Monthly amount is based upon either 3 or 6 number of snow clearing and/or salting/sanding events per month (as indicated). If the number of events exceeds the estimated maximum number of events per month, the contractor will be paid based upon their per event rate.

Applicable taxes are extra.



# ANNEX C INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

# Commercial General Liability Insurance

- 1. The Contractor must obtain Commercial General Liability Insurance, and maintain it in force throughout the duration of the Contract, in an amount usual for a contract of this nature, but for not less than \$2,000,000 per accident or occurrence and in the annual aggregate.
- 2. The Commercial General Liability policy must include the following:
  - a. Additional Insured: Canada is added as an additional insured, but only with respect to liability arising out of the Contractor's performance of the Contract. The interest of Canada should read as follows: Canada, as represented by Public Works and Government Services Canada.
  - b. Bodily Injury and Property Damage to third parties arising out of the operations of the Contractor.
  - c. Products and Completed Operations: Coverage for bodily injury or property damage arising out of goods or products manufactured, sold, handled, or distributed by the Contractor and/or arising out of operations that have been completed by the Contractor.
  - d. Personal Injury: While not limited to, the coverage must include Violation of Privacy, Libel and Slander, False Arrest, Detention or Imprisonment and Defamation of Character.
  - e. Cross Liability/Separation of Insureds: Without increasing the limit of liability, the policy must protect all insured parties to the full extent of coverage provided. Further, the policy must apply to each Insured in the same manner and to the same extent as if a separate policy had been issued to each.
  - f. Blanket Contractual Liability: The policy must, on a blanket basis or by specific reference to the Contract, extend to assumed liabilities with respect to contractual provisions.
  - g. Employees and, if applicable, Volunteers must be included as Additional Insured.
  - h. Employers' Liability (or confirmation that all employees are covered by Worker's compensation (WSIB) or similar program)
  - Broad Form Property Damage including Completed Operations: Expands the Property Damage coverage to include certain losses that would otherwise be excluded by the standard care, custody or control exclusion found in a standard policy.
  - j. Notice of Cancellation: The Insurer will endeavour to provide the Contracting Authority thirty (30) days written notice of policy cancellation.
  - k. If the policy is written on a claims-made basis, coverage must be in place for a period of at least 12 months after the completion or termination of the Contract.
  - Owners' or Contractors' Protective Liability: Covers the damages that the Contractor becomes legally obligated to pay arising out of the operations of a subcontractor.
  - m. Non-Owned Automobile Liability Coverage for suits against the Contractor resulting from the use of hired or non-owned vehicles.
  - n. Advertising Injury: While not limited to, the endorsement must include coverage piracy or misappropriation of ideas, or infringement of copyright, trademark, title or slogan.



- o. All Risks Tenants Legal Liability to protect the Contractor for liabilities arising out of its occupancy of leased premises.
- p. Amendment to the Watercraft Exclusion to extend to incidental repair operations on board watercraft.
- q. Sudden and Accidental Pollution Liability (minimum 120 hours): To protect the Contractor for liabilities arising from damages caused by accidental pollution incidents.
- r. Litigation Rights: Pursuant to subsection 5(d) of the Department of Justice Act, S.C. 1993, c. J-2, s.1, if a suit is instituted for or against Canada which the Insurer would, but for this clause, have the right to pursue or defend on behalf of Canada as an Additional Named Insured under the insurance policy, the Insurer must promptly contact the Attorney General of Canada to agree on the legal strategies by sending a letter, by registered mail or by courier, with an acknowledgement of receipt.
- s. For the province of Quebec, send to:

Director Business Law Directorate, Quebec Regional Office (Ottawa), Department of Justice, 284 Wellington Street, Room SAT-6042, Ottawa, Ontario, K1A 0H8

For other provinces and territories, send to:

Senior General Counsel, Civil Litigation Section, Department of Justice 234 Wellington Street, East Tower Ottawa, Ontario K1A 0H8

A copy of the letter must be sent to the Contracting Authority. Canada reserves the right to co-defend any action brought against Canada. All expenses incurred by Canada to co-defend such actions will be at Canada's expense. If Canada decides to co-defend any action brought against it, and Canada does not agree to a proposed settlement agreed to by the Contractor's insurer and the plaintiff(s) that would result in the settlement or dismissal of the action against Canada, then Canada w

ill be responsible to the Contractor's insurer for any difference between the proposed settlement amount and the amount finally awarded or paid to the plaintiffs (inclusive of costs and interest) on behalf of Canada.



# ANNEX D SUPPLIER LIST OF NAMES

Environment and Climate Change Canada has endorsed the Integrity Regime developed and implemented by Public Services and Procurement Canada. By submitting a quote, Contractors agree to comply with the provisions of the Integrity Regime and *Ineligibility and Suspension Policy* as well as the *Code of Conduct for Procurement*. / Environnement et Changement climatique Canada a adopté le régime d'intégrité développé et mis en place par Services publics et Approvisionnement Canada. Les fournisseurs acceptent, en soumettant une proposition, de se conformer aux dispositions du régime d'intégrité et la *Politique d'inadmissibilité et de suspension* ainsi que le *Code de conduite pour l'approvisionnement*.

In accordance with the PWGSC (now PSPC) <u>Ineligibility and Suspension Policy</u>, the following information is to be provided when bidding or contracting. <sup>1</sup> / Selon la <u>Politique d'inadmissibilité et de suspension</u> de TPSGC (maintenant SPAC), les renseignements suivants doivent être fournis lors d'une soumission ou de la passation d'un marché.

Mandatory Information /I	Informations obligatoires			
* Complete Legal Name of Company /Dénomination complète de l'entreprise				
* Operating Name /Nom commercial				
* Company's addre	ess / Adresse de l'entreprise	* Type of Ownership / Type d'entreprise		
		☐ Individual / Individuel		
		Corporation / Corporation		
		☐ Joint-Venture / Coentreprise /		
	* Board of Directors/ Membres du conseil d'administration <sup>2</sup>			
(Or provide the list as an attachement / Ou mettre la liste en pièce-jointe)				
First name / Prénom	Last Name / Nom	Position (if applicable)/ Position (si applicable)		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>List of names: All suppliers, regardless of their status under the Policy, must submit the following information when participating in a procurement process:

<sup>•</sup> suppliers that are corporate entities, including those bidding as joint ventures, must provide a complete list of the names of all current directors or, for a privately owned corporation, the names of the owners of the corporation;

suppliers bidding as sole proprietors, including sole proprietors bidding as joint ventures, must provide a complete list of the names of all owners; or

<sup>•</sup> suppliers that are a partnership do not need to provide a list of names.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>Board of Governors /Conseil des gouverneurs; Board of Managers /Conseil de direction; Board of Regents /Conseil de régents; Board of Trustees / Conseil de fiducie; Board of Visitors /Comité de réception

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Liste des noms : Tous les fournisseurs, peu importe leur situation au titre de la Politique, doivent présenter les renseignements ci-dessous au moment de prendre part à un processus d'approvisionnement:

<sup>•</sup> les fournisseurs constitués en personne morale, y compris ceux qui présentent une soumission à titre de coentreprise, doivent fournir la liste complète des noms de tous les administrateurs actuels ou, dans le cas d'une entreprise privée, des propriétaires de la société;

<sup>•</sup> les fournisseurs soumissionnant à titre d'entreprise à propriétaire unique, y compris ceux soumissionnant en tant que coentreprise, doivent fournir la liste complète des noms de tous les propriétaires;

<sup>•</sup> les fournisseurs soumissionnant à titre de société en nom collectif n'ont pas à soumettre une liste de noms.